Goddard Unified Enterprise Services and Technology (GUEST) Request for Proposal (RFP) Questions and Comments
With Government Responses
Volume III

Clarification to QUESTION 22 posted on September 25, 2008 response is revised as follows:

Section L; Subfactor C: Integrated Management Plan (IMP):

a) Is the IMP the Management Approach?

b) If not, is the IMP to be delivered with proposal or within XX days of award?

c) If not, is the IMP included in page count?

d) Is the IMP going to be put on contract at contract award? 

RESPONSE:

a) No, the IMP covers components of the Management Approach as a stand-alone portion of the Mission Suitability Proposal Volume.
b) The IMP shall be delivered with the proposal.
c) No, the IMP is excluded from the page count.
d) No, the IMP is not incorporated under the contract.
Questions and Responses
1. In several places (Section L10b, Table of Page Limitations, p. 89; Section L13-3c, Mission Suitability Proposal Instructions for Subfactor C, p. 98; and Section M4, Subfactor C Evaluation Criteria, p. 117), the Government uses the capitalized term “Integrated Management Plan”.  Question:  Is the Government referring to a specific, discrete deliverable ?  If so, would the Government please clarify precisely what information is to be included in the Integrated Management Plan?

RESPONSE: 
The IMP is required to be included with the proposal. The RFP shall be amended to indicate that the information identified in the first and second paragraph of Section L., Subfactor C shall be included in the IMP.
2. Question, part a:  Would the Government consider the implementation of a Configuration Management DB CMDB part of RTO #1, “Enterprise Support Center”, or is this outside the scope of the task?  Question, part b:  Should we assume CMDB implementation and management will be handled by another task with whom the service center task interfaces? 

RESPONSE:

a. It is the business decision/strategy of the Offeror to propose a Configuration Management Data Base.

b. Offerors should not assume operations and management are handled by separate tasks.  Operations and IT consolidation efforts are continuous.
3. In several places within the RFP, the Government indicates that Offerors may recommend within their responses the use of off-site facilities to perform data center operations, and application services. In order for Offerors to prove the cost-effectiveness of providing services off-site versus the current onsite arrangement, Offerors need to know the current cost of onsite services. Without knowing the Government's cost for the existing facilities, it is difficult to determine whether off-site facilities would offer potential savings to GSFC.  Questions: a) What is the cost to the Government for the existing on-site services of the representative task orders?  b)  How does the Government plan to evaluate the value of having an off-site solution? 

RESPONSE:

See Section L.14 (3)(b) and Section M.5 (4)(f).  The Government will assess 75 square foot per person times $20 per square foot for on-site personnel proposed. The cost proposed for work to be performed offsite shall be reflected in Exhibit C and evaluated in accordance with Section M. 5 in the RFP.
4. Clauses B.4, H.13 and I.2(d)(2):  Question, part a)  Can you please provide an example of profit apportionment between Price Incentive and Performance Incentive?  b)  Is clause I.2(d)(2) applied only to the 50% of profit apportioned to the Price Incentive?  c)  Under which circumstances can a contractor receive 100% of proposed profit? 

RESPONSE: 

a. The Presolicitation Conference Presentation slides provided multiple examples of the Price Incentive.  The Performance Incentive will be measured based on metrics to be negotiated under the individual task orders
b. Yes, only 50% of the profit is appropriated to the Price Incentive.

c. The successful Offeror has the opportunity to receive 100% of target profit, if the contractor meets the target cost and meets the maximum performance metrics under the individual task order.

5. Clause L.10 (b) as amended in Amendment 1, and response to Set B, question 4:  Clause L.10 (b) states the BOE is limited to 30 pages, the response to question 4 states that “The BOE is limited to twelve (12) pages under the Price Volume among the four (4) RTPs.”  Question:  Would the Government please confirm the 30-page limit for the BOE?
RESPONSE: Clarification:  The response is revised to state that the BOE page limitation is 30 pages amongst the four RTOs.

6. Clause L.17 (f):  It appears that this Clause L.17 applies to the entire GUEST program.  Question:  Would the Government please clarify how Offerors should prospectively identify equipment to be acquired over the next five (5) years. 
RESPONSE: The Offeror should use its best efforts to identify equipment to be acquired for contract performance.  This information is required for contract administration.
7. Question:  Clause M.5:  How will the Government evaluate those proposed labor rates that are not part of pricing the four RTOs?   
RESPONSE:  Rates will be verified with Offeror’s cognizant auditing agency and/or use other resources to validate rates for reasonableness.
8. Question:  Once unit prices are established via Attachment C, can those unit prices be discounted when pricing the RTO's ?  

RESPONSE: Attachment C rates cannot be discounted when pricing RTOs.  However, discounts may be offered on actual task orders after award.  

9. Section L.10 (b)(1). In the Offer Volume row of the table in this section, item (f) is titled “Contract Attachments.” There does not appear to be any further reference to this item specifically in Section L.12, the Offer Volume Instructions, or generally anywhere else within the RFP. Please clarify the intended contents, if any, of this proposal section.
RESPONSE:  No contract attachments are required in the Offeror Volume I.
10. The RFP instructions Section L.14, 2(c) Representative Task Order (RTO) Prices requests that Exhibit C for the RTO be submitted starting at the 3rd WBS Level.  If the Offeror does not believe a particular RTO has 3 WBS levels is it acceptable to propose at level 1 or 2?
RESPONSE: Yes.

11. Clause H.5 "Applicability of Rights in Data - Special Works - The NASA intent is for this clause to be applicable to any data requested by the government. This is very broad. Would NASA be willing to further define the data or perhaps delete the clause because of application of FAR 52.227-14 Rights in Data - General clause?

RESPONSE:
The Government will further define the data subject to the clause at the task order level.  It is determined that the clause will not be deleted.
12. Clause FAR 52.239-1 Privacy or Security Safeguards - Can this clause be accepted with the understanding that the paragraph (b) reference to “Government access” is interpreted as “Comptroller General access” or some other more finite description of access rather than 'Government access"? 

RESPONSE: No, it is interpreted to mean "any" federal Government access. 
13. Clause I.16 "Rights in Data --Special Works" - As this contract is not just for "special works" will NASA consider deleting this clause?

RESPONSE: See response to Number 11.  
14. We assume that desktop support is out of scope for this RFP in terms of IMAC and Incidents. Is that a correct assumption? Do the calls to the T1 Help Desk include desktop calls and require an interface to the desktop support provider, or are those calls routed directly to the desktop provider?

RESPONSE:  Yes, that is the correct assumption. Desktop Services is not in scope of the RFP. However, the offeror is expected to establish interfaces with the Desktop Services Provider to deliver seamless services to the customers. Calls may come into the Help Desk for the Desktop Services Provider or to the GUEST Service Provider. The offeror is expected to meet the objectives of the enterprise call center services.
15. Can we get a clarification on the call volumes to the Help Desk on a monthly call volume average?

RESPONSE: See Response to #17.
16. How many FTEs currently support the Tier 2 and Tier 3 help desk environments across Goddard?

RESPONSE:  The Government does not keep track of help desk number of FTE supporting the services at the tier 2 and tier 3 levels.
17. RTO #1, ESCC identifies call volumes of 5000 per week at Tier 1, 1000 per week at Tier 2, and 200 per week at Tier 3. Alternatively, the PowerPoint presentation from the GUEST RFP Library entitled, 'Call Center Info & Statistics' provides a monthly snapshot with about 8400 requests for service, of which 2200 were incoming calls. Can you please explain the discrepancy between the RTO-based volumes and the current environment statistics provided in the PowerPoint?

RESPONSES: The RTO is a hypothetical task description, and the Offeror shall respond to the RTO as described.  The information provided during the June 23 Industry Day was a real snapshot of the past month’s volume. The RTOs are designed to be representative of the work expected under the contract and are meant to provide a common basis for Offerors to propose against.
18. How will we handle developmental holds for (project milestones, system baselines)?

RESPONSE:   Patch Management developmental holds are coordinated between the Government and Contractor using Project Management processes. Procedures will be finalized during Phase-in period. 

19.  Reference the Questions and Answers released on September 25, 2008, Question #28.

The response to this question clarifies the Government’s intended definition of the WBS levels for this procurement.  The Government defines the WBS levels as follows:

·         WBS Level 1 as Contract Level, 

·         WBS Level 2 as RTO (Task Order Level), and 

·         WBS Level 3 as the Contract Year (Sub-Task Order Level).

 However, RFP Section L.14 paragraph 2c defines the WBS levels as follows:

·         WBS Level 1 as Total RTO

·         WBS Level 2 as one lower level than the WBS Level 1 (Total RTO)

·         WBS Level 3 as one lower level than the WBS Level 2

The RFP language states “starting at WBS Level 3 [e.g., 1.1, 1.2, 1.3…..” Thus the response to Question #28 is in conflict with RFP Section L.14. 

We recommend the existing RFP language be retained. If the Government’s intent is the response to Question #28 is the official requirement, then respectfully request the Government amend the RFP.

RESPONSE: The response to Question #28 was inaccurate and WBS Levels are as stated in the RFP Section L.14.

20. Reference the Questions and Answers released on September 25, 2008, Question #22.

The response to this question conflicts with the RFP and does not appear to address the questions we submitted earlier.

a. The response to Question #22c states the IMP is included in the page count. However, the table in RFP Section L.12(b)(1) [in RFP Amendment 1] states the IMP is excluded from the page limitation.

b. The response to Question #22a states the IMP is not the Management Approach. A search of the RFP did not find any references to the IMP except in (1) the table in L.12(b)(1) and (2) in L.10.3 Subfactor C. These references do not specify the scope, contents and requirements to be addressed in this Plan.

c. We recommend the requirement for the IMP submission with the proposal be removed.  If the Government requires an IMP to be provided with the proposal, we respectfully request:

(1) The IMP be excluded from the 200 page count limit, consistent with the RFP.

(2) The Government provide details related to the scope, contents and requirements to be addressed in this Plan

RESPONSE: The response to question #22 in the document posted on September 25 was incorrect.  Clarification has been made to the Government’s response to question #22 in the September 25 posting and the RFP is amended to address the details in the IMP (see Amendment Two (2)).

21. The answer to Question #22 c) states that the IMP is to be included in the page count limitation whereas the table on Page 89 of the RFP indicates that the Integrated Management Plan is excluded from page limitation. If, in fact, the IMP must be included in the page limitation, this is a very significant impact on proposal preparation at this late date in the process. Our suggestion is to clarify the response to Question #22 to reflect that the IMP is excluded from page limitations.

RESPONSE: See “Clarification to QUESTION 22 posted on September 25, 2008 response”.  The IMP is excluded from the page limitations.
22. Attachment C, Section 1 solicits the Primes labor rates by category "loaded through G&A" while Section 3 solicits the Subcontractors labor rates by category "fully loaded." Is the Government's intent that Subcontractor rates in this chart should be loaded differently than the Prime's? Specifically, is the Government suggesting that all Subs would work under a fixed rate labor hour basis while the Prime works under an incentive fee? Doesn't that run counter to the performance work environment presented in the GUEST solicitation? Isn't Attachment C as now written, if there was an intended difference in Prime versus Sub loading, soliciting a fee upon fee response?

RESPONSE: Yes, the Government’s intent in Attachment C is that subcontractor rates are loaded through profit, if applicable. It is the Prime Contractor’s responsibility and discretion to manage subcontractor(s) cost, including profit arrangements.
September 18, 2008
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